
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

February 18, 2025 at 7:00 PM 

Council Chambers – Town Municipal Center 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER - Mr. Tolbert 

INVOCATION - Mr. Bowden 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mr. Tolbert 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS - Mr. Tolbert 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - Chair 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Chair 

1. November 12 minutes 

REVIEW SIGN AND MURAL ORDINANCE - Chair 

2. Attorney Opinions 

3. Sign Ordinance Enforcement Memo 

4. Artwork Article American Bar Association 

5. Morris v. City of New Orleans 

REVIEW PUBLIC SEWER PROJECT ISSUES - Chair 

6. Letter of Interest 

7. Letter of Interest Response 

REVIEW PUBLIC SEWER PROJECT ISSUES - Chair 

8. Short Term Rental Registry 

ANNOUNCEMENTS OR COMMENTS - Chair 

ADJOURN 

1



MINUTES OF THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

TOWN OF CHINCOTEAGUE, VIRGINIA 

NOVEMBER 12, 2024 - 7:00 P.M. – Council Chambers 

 

Commission Members Present:   Commission Members Absent: 

Mr. Ray Rosenberger, Chairman  

Mrs. Mollie Cherrix, Vice Chairperson   

Mr. David Britton      

Mr. Michael Dendler 

Mr. Steve Katsetos      

Mr. K. Savage, Councilman 

Mr. Robert Shendock 

     

Staff Present: 

Mr. Michael T. Tolbert, P.E., Town Manager  

Mr. Mark Bowden, Building Zoning Administrator 

 

Call to Order 

Vice Chairman Rosenberger called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Invocation 

Councilman Savage offered the invocation. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Rosenberger led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Public Participation 

Chairman Rosenberger opened the floor for public participation.  There was none. 

 

Adoption of Agenda Mr. Katsetos motioned, seconded by Mr. Briton to adopt the agenda 

as presented.  Unanimously approved. 

 

Approval of the Minutes 

Mr. Savage motioned, seconded by Mr. Katetosto approve the minutes of the October 8th, 

2024 meeting as presented.  Unanimously approved. 

 

Review of Subdivision Lot Requirements 

Mr. Bowden explained the issue with subdivision of lots using flag lots and the fact that access to 

such lots is hampered by the practice of granting easements to all lot holders across all other lot 

holder’s lots. Mr. Tolbert explained the issue with the inadequate width of flag lots being less 

than 10’ to assign a 911 address since each 911 number changes on 10’ intervals.  

 

A discussion ensued as to the  issues with flag lots which include the aforementioned 

inadequacies and the requirements for water line routing through the flag stems requiring access 

2

Item 1.



by vehicles across installed water meters degrading water lines and increasing the risk of damage 

to water lines and thus costs to the town through water department repairs.  

 

The commission directed Town Manager Tolbert to research and recommend proper routing of 

water lines through utility easements for subdivisions and also directed Administrator Bowden to 

research and recommend both the proper number of lots approved for subdivisions using flag lots 

and also to recommend the proper with of any access road to access these lots.  

 

Announcements or Comments 

Mr. Bob Shendock announced his resignation from the commission and expressed his thanks for 

the work of all commissioners. All commissioners expressed thanks to Mr. Shendock for his 

dedication and hard work on behalf of the commission.  

 

Adjourn 

Mr. Savage motioned, seconded by Mr. Britton to adjourn.  Unanimously approved. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Chairman, Ray Rosenberger 

3

Item 1.



Town of Chincoteague, Inc.  
 

6150 Community Drive, Chincoteague Island, Virginia 23336  (757) 336-6519 

 
 

 

  

TO:  Members of the Planning Commission 

 

FROM: Michael Tolbert, Town Manager 

 

DATE:  February 11, 2025 

 

SUBJECT:  Mural and Sign Ordinance 

 

 

I recently proposed questions concerning our mural ordinance to our attorney Mike Sterling of 

Woods Rogers. The exchange is instructive and is copied below.  

 

 

Questions posed to Town Attorney about Murals: 

 

The Town recently issued a variance to the zoning code’s sign ordinance which in effect 

permitted a large mural to be painted on the side of a commercial building in our downtown. We 

required the variance because our code does not have a definition for Mural and they are 

therefore not permitted by right. The mural that was proposed actually fit the definition of a sign 

but was too large, so we required the applicant to go to the BZA to obtain a variance to the sign 

ordinance. To rectify this round about approval process, we are proposing a mural ordinance to 

be added to the zoning code. The proposed ordinance provides a definition as well as 

requirements for any proposed mural.  

 As part of the ordinance, I want to make the approval of all murals only by a conditional use 

permit (CUP) which requires the review and approval of the planning commission as well as a 

final approval by the Council. This route will at least keep some structure to the entire process 

and prevent the town from being littered with cheap graffiti like pictures all over our buildings. 

My reading of the CUP language is that they are for uses not permitted by right and that the CUP 

must be granted within the scope of the comprehensive plan. Is there any reason that I cannot use 

the CUP process to approve murals? 

 

 

4

Item 2.



Town of Chincoteague, Inc.  
 

6150 Community Drive, Chincoteague Island, Virginia 23336  (757) 336-6519 

Answer provided by Town Attorney: 

“Here are some comments and information for your review, and then we should discuss further. 

I don’t see any reason why you can’t use a CUP process, but there are other issues for you to 

consider. One quick note is that you need to include time limits for the review process to issue 

the CUP.”  

 “I did not review the Town’s sign ordinance, but if it has not been updated since 2015, it is 

probably unconstitutional. That is because of the decision of the US Supreme Court in Reed of 

Town of Gilbert. I have attached a memo from the Local Government Attorney Association 

(LGA) regarding that decision for your review.”  

 “One of the concerns I have about your separate mural ordinance is that it may run afoul of 

Reed, since among other things you are treating murals differently than signs and is therefore 

arguably content related. This might invalidate both the sign ordinance and the mural 

ordinance. I have attached a case where the court invalidated a similar mural ordinance, Morris 

v. City of New  Orleans.”  

 “I have also attached an article by the American Bar Association (ABA) regarding regulation of 

artwork.”  

 “This is a very complicated issue, and there is a cottage industry of plaintiffs challenging such 

ordinances as they can often recovery attorney fees and costs.”  

 

 

The articles provided by Mr. Sterling are attached here for your review. 

 

 

5

Item 2.



94764.4 
Rev. 7/27/15 

 
To: LGA Members 
 
From: Sign Ordinance Ad Hoc Committee 
 
Subj.: U.S. Supreme Court Decision - Reed v. Town of Gilbert 
 
Date: July 29, 2015 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
On June 18, 2015, the United States Supreme Court decided the case of Reed v. 

Town of Gilbert Arizona, et. al., wherein the Court examined whether or not a locality's 
sign ordinance that assigns different size and posting requirements based on the type of 
noncommercial speech displayed violates the First Amendment of the U.S. Constitution.  
This memorandum is intended to assist Virginia local government attorneys in the 
enforcement of your locality’s sign ordinance in light of the decision in this case. 
 
 The traditional model sign ordinance, which is most often used to classify 
temporary signs, identifies different types of signs with monikers like “real estate sign,” 
“political sign,” “ideological sign,” “directional sign,” “construction site sign,” and 
“garage sale sign.” The model then sets out standards, which control quantity, placement, 
size, timing of display, and potentially other characteristics of each category of sign. In 
other words, the quantity, placement, size, timing of display, and other features of a sign 
are limited not on the basis of the structure of the sign itself, but instead entirely on the 
basis of the message the sign displays. 
 
 In the Reed decision, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that where a local ordinance 
defines the categories of temporary, political, and ideological signs solely on the basis of 
their messages and then subjects each category to different restrictions, the ordinance is 
"content based" requiring strict scrutiny review.  In other words the ordinance must 
further a "compelling governmental interest", be "narrowly tailored" to achieve that 
interest and must leave open “ample alternative channels of communication.” 
 
 The Town of Gilbert's ordinance failed to survive strict scrutiny review; however, 
the Court stated that its decision will not prevent governments from enacting ordinances 
that are content neutral to "resolve problems with safety and aesthetics, including 
regulating size, building materials, lighting, moving parts, and portability."  The decision 
further states that localities "may be able to forbid postings on public property, so long as 
it does so in an evenhanded, content neutral manner."  The Court also suggested that an 
ordinance that is "narrowly tailored to the challenges of protecting the safety of 
pedestrians, drivers and passengers" (such as warning signs marking hazards on private 
property or signs directing traffic) might survive strict scrutiny.   
 
  

 

6

Item 3.



94764.4 
Rev. 7/27/15 

 In the wake of the Reed decision, it is important to note that: 
 

• Content-based sign laws – those that differentiate speech based on its 
communicative content – are presumptively unconstitutional and may be justified 
only if the government proves that they are narrowly tailored to serve compelling 
state interests and leave open ample alternative channels of communication. 

 
• Government regulation of speech is content-based if a law applies to particular 

speech because of the topic discussed or the idea or message expressed. 
 

• Previously, the Fourth Circuit has used the following test for determining if a 
regulation is not content-based: “1) the regulation is not a regulation of speech, 
but rather a regulation of places where speech may occur; 2) the regulation was 
not adopted because of disagreement with the message the speech conveys; or 3) 
the government’s interests in the regulation are unrelated to the content of the 
affected speech.” Brown v. Town of Cary, 706 F. 3d 294 (4th Cir. 2013). The 
Fourth Circuit’s test has been overruled by the Reed decision.	  
	  

• An ordinance regulating temporary directional signs will be considered to be 
content-based to the extent that it differentiates what regulations apply based 
solely on the message that it conveys (i.e. conveying the message of directing the 
public to a church or some other "qualifying event").  
 

• The locality will bear the burden of demonstrating that the Code’s differentiation 
of signs based on content (i.e. between temporary directional signs and other 
types of signs, such as political signs and ideological signs) furthers a compelling 
governmental interest and is narrowly tailored to that end. 

 
In the coming months, the Local Government Attorneys of Virginia hope to provide a 

Model Ordinance to address the issues raised by the Reed decision.  Until that time, 
localities are encouraged to adhere to these guidelines for enforcing their current 
ordinance in light of the Court's ruling. In the context of the recommendations below, 
keep in mind that if your ordinance differentiates its sign restrictions in a manner that is 
not content-neutral, you can still enforce those restrictions if you can justify the 
differentiation under a strict scrutiny analysis; however, since that standard is a difficult 
one to reach, the advice below presumes that the portions of your ordinance that are not 
content-neutral will not be justifiable under a strict scrutiny standard.  
 
1. Severability.  Does your ordinance have a severability provision? If so, then you 
should consider reviewing your ordinance to enforce the provisions that are still 
enforceable, since the enforceable portions can be severed from the unenforceable 
portion. For example, limitations on banner size, materials, methods to affix and display 
period can be enforced, but you can no longer enforce a regulation that banners only be 
used to convey certain messages (such as “Now Hiring”, “Community Event”, “Grand 
Opening”, etc.) or regulations that differentiate amongst banners based on the messages 
they convey. 

7

Item 3.



94764.4 
Rev. 7/27/15 

 
2.  Permissible Regulation.  A concurring opinion in the Reed decision suggests that 
regulations can differentiate based on these categories: content-neutral size regulations, 
building-mounted versus free-standing, sign location and setbacks, illumination, fixed 
versus electronic messages, private versus public property, commercial versus residential 
property, on-premises versus off-premises, temporary versus permanent, and number of 
signs per street frontage/mile of roadway. To the extent your ordinance regulates these 
categories in a content-neutral manner, these portions of your sign ordinance can still be 
enforced. 
 
3.  Commercial vs. Noncommercial Speech.  There is nothing in the Reed decision 
which overtly overrules the Court’s long-standing jurisprudence that regulations can 
distinguish between commercial and noncommercial speech. Then again, the Reed 
decision involved sign regulation that made distinctions amongst types of noncommercial 
speech, so the Court had no reason to discuss the difference between commercial and 
noncommercial speech. Accordingly, while the distinction between the regulation of 
commercial and noncommercial speech still exist after Reed, the language and analysis of 
the unanimous Reed decision raises a doubt about the continuation of that distinction in 
the future. 
 
4. Risk Assessment.  In reviewing your ordinance for provisions that can still be 
enforced, your first review should be from a “grammar” perspective: what regulations are 
content-neutral and still enforceable? However, once you review the words of your 
ordinance, you need to also do a risk assessment. First Amendment rights receive strong 
protections from the courts and, once violated, they are impossible to remedy. If you 
think enforcement of part of your ordinance is a “gray area”, then don’t enforce it at this 
time. One example of a risk assessment is discussed in the following paragraph, about 
temporary signs. 
 
5.  Temporary Signs.  The Supreme Court has long held that citizens’ First Amendment 
rights require that they have the opportunity to express their noncommercial ideas or 
opinions through temporary signs. Of course, like in the Town of Gilbert, the temporary 
sign regulations are often content-based. When considering how much of your current 
ordinance to enforce, it is recommended that you allow as much as possible – or all – 
temporary signs up to the maximum number, size and location limits afforded under your 
current ordinance. Moreover, allowing more temporary signs is a decision with relatively 
low long-term risk, since these types of signs typically are not sufficiently permanent to 
become nonconforming uses that would be allowed to remain or continue after the 
adoption of a new ordinance. 
 
6.  Nonconforming use.  Perhaps one of the biggest concerns about signs that are erected 
in this interim period between the issuance of Reed and your new sign ordinance is the 
possibility of a sign epidemic and thereafter all of those overly-large or unappealing signs 
being claimed as nonconforming uses. To become a nonconforming use, the use has to 
have been legal when erected. If your larger or more permanent signs have to go through 
a sign permit process, see the paragraph below. 

8

Item 3.



94764.4 
Rev. 7/27/15 

 
7.  Sign permits. If permanent signs in your locality have to go through a sign permit 
process, then the issuance of a sign permit will be a governmental act that may allow that 
sign to become legally nonconforming even after your new ordinance is adopted. So be 
careful about what permits you issue in the interim. If your sign permit process does not 
have a stated deadline for decision, consider using more review time than you have 
typically in the past to try to negotiate with the applicant, especially if you are trying to 
act quickly to adopt a new sign ordinance. Keep in mind, though, that even without a 
time frame identified in your ordinance, the time you take to analyze a sign permit 
application has to be reasonable, or else it could be considered an illegal prior restraint of 
speech. 
 
8.  Interim ordinance.  There are typically a large number of stakeholders interested in a 
new sign ordinance – commercial businesses, developers, homeowners’ associations and 
residents. It will take forever to get input and feedback from all of these groups on a new 
sign ordinance. Consider drafting an interim sign ordinance in which you revise existing 
regulations using only the content-neutral categories that were championed by the 
concurring opinion in Reed and get it adopted without (or with little) stakeholder input. 
Then, with a content-neutral ordinance in place and enforceable, you can take more time 
to revise and improve your sign ordinance and obtain feedback from the stakeholder 
groups. See the permissible regulation section, above, for the broad categories of 
regulation you could impose in a content-neutral manner in an interim ordinance. 
 
9.  Signs in Rights of Way.  To the extent your locality works with VDOT, temporary 
signs placed in the roadway median or in the grassy right of way adjacent to VDOT roads 
are still illegal because the state law prohibiting such signs (Virginia Code § 33.2-1224) 
is content neutral. If your locality controls your own rights of way, check to see if your 
prohibition on signs in rights of way is content-neutral and, therefore, enforceable. 
 
10. Regulation of signs through Zoning Conditions.  Though the conditions of a 
zoning case or special use permit approved by your locality become amendments to your 
zoning ordinance, they can also be analyzed as a request by an applicant for approval of 
the signs that it seeks to use in its development. Analyzed in this manner, the conditions 
in a zoning case or special use permit should be able to be more specific than the general 
sign ordinance provisions. However, be mindful of your risks in analyzing zoning 
conditions regulating signs; Virginia Code § 15.2-2208.1 provides that any 
unconstitutional zoning condition can be declared void and further provides for the 
recovery of compensatory damages, costs and attorney fees. 

9

Item 3.



10

Item 4.



11

Item 4.



12

Item 4.



13

Item 4.



14

Item 4.



15

Item 4.



16

Item 4.



17

Item 4.



18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.



22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



24

Item 4.



25

Item 4.



26

Item 4.



27

Item 4.



28

Item 4.



29

Item 4.



30

Item 4.



31

Item 5.



32

Item 5.



33

Item 5.



34

Item 5.



35

Item 5.



36

Item 5.



37

Item 5.



38

Item 5.



39

Item 5.



40

Item 5.



41

Item 5.



42

Item 5.



43

Item 5.



44

Item 5.



45

Item 5.



46

Item 5.



Town of Chincoteague, Inc.  
 

6150 Community Drive, Chincoteague Island, Virginia 23336  (757) 336-6519 

 
  

Dear Business Owner 

You are receiving this letter because your business or property is located on the route of the Town’s 

planned initial public sewer system. Construction of the low-pressure collection system along Main Street 

and Maddox Blvd. began in January and the Town anticipates offering public sewer services along this 

route beginning in January of 2027. 

 

Background: 

 

In December of 2023, the Town of Chincoteague obtained, ownership of the packaged sewer plants 

servicing Sunset Bay Condominiums on Main St. from the original developer. We then successfully 

transferred that facility to the Hampton Roads Sanitation District. HRSD has agreed to replace the 

existing aging plants with new higher capacity plants by December of 2026. For our part of this project, 

the Town of Chincoteague will build a low-pressure collection system along the Main St./Maddox Blvd. 

business districts to feed the new plants and offer sewage treatment service to businesses along that route. 

 

The configuration of the new system will require individual grinder pumps for each customer’s 

connection. These pumps, located on the customer’s property, will pump all sewage from the customer’s 

property into the collection system and eventually to HRSD’s treatment plant on Main St. Business 

owners that decide to connect to the system will be required to furnish and install these pumps as well as 

provide associated operation and maintenance costs. However, there is no requirement to connect to 

this new public system now and it will be available for future connections as capacity allows. 

 

For businesses interested in connecting to public sewer as part of this project: 

 

1. General information: 

 

a. Town Responsibilities – the Town’s Public Works Department or engineer will collaborate 

with the property owner to locate the sewer lateral and pumps during an onsite meeting. The 

Town Public Works Department or utility contractor will provide a service connection to the 

collection system including all required materials up to the customer’s property line or Curb 

Stop. 

 

b. Property Owner Responsibilities - the property owner will be responsible 

for the purchase and installation of the grinder pump and all valves, fittings, pipe and 

electrical service required to connect the business to the grinder pump system and the pump 

to the Curb Stop. Property owners may hire a properly licensed contractor of their choice to 

complete this work. 

 

c. Timeline and Capacity – HRSD will upgrade the plant in phases. Phase 1 will be 

operational in January of 2027 and will support the Town’s initial offering of 37,000 gallons 

per day along with the flow from existing customers. Subsequent phases will increase the 

capacity of the plant as HRSD obtains additional discharge permits from DEQ. The collection 

47

Item 6.



Town of Chincoteague, Inc.  
 

6150 Community Drive, Chincoteague Island, Virginia 23336  (757) 336-6519 

system has been designed to support an ultimate flow of 350,000 gallons per day and will be 

adequate through all plant upgrades.  

 

The Town of Chincoteague anticipates that the initial capacity offered will not be 

adequate to service all businesses that express an interest in connecting. HRSD is 

therefore actively seeking additional permits from the state to increase capacity to the 

designed ultimate flow.  

 

d. Connection Fees – A standard one-time connection fee based on the customer’s water use as 

well as an annual maintenance fee will be charged by the Town for all businesses electing to 

connect to the new system. These fees will be determined in the next few months and 

published on the Town’s website.  

 

2. Please complete the Sewer Connection Interest Form attached to this letter and 

return it to our office using the enclosed return envelope by April 1, 2024. 

Alternatively, the completed form may be scanned and emailed to our office at 

mtolbert@chincoteague-va.gov. 

 

For Businesses choosing not to connect to public sewer as part of this project: 

 

1. As mentioned above, connecting to this new public sewer system is not required. 

2. If you choose not to connect as part of this project, please know that the new 

public sewer system will be available for future connections as capacity becomes available. 

3. For business and property owners not connecting to public sewer as part of this project, there is 

nothing further for you to do at this time. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this project or any of the information 

provided here, please contact the Town office by phone at (757) 336-6519 or by email 

at mtolbert@chincoteague-va.gov and I will be happy to discuss it with you. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Michael T. Tolbert PE 

Town Manager 

48

Item 6.



Town of Chincoteague, Inc.  
 

6150 Community Drive, Chincoteague Island, Virginia 23336  (757) 336-6519 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Town of Chincoteague Commercial Sewer Service 

Letter of Interest Response 

 

Property Owner Name: _________________________________________________ 

Owner Mailing Address: ________________________________________________ 

Property Address: ______________________________________________________ 

Contact Phone Number: _________________________________________________ 

Current Name of Business: _______________________________________________ 

Type of Business: ______________________________________________________ 

Months of Operation: (circle all that apply)  J, F, M, A, M, J, J, A, S, O, N, D  

_____ I am interested in connecting to the Town’s Commercial sewer system immediately.  

_____ I am interested in connecting to the Town’s Commercial sewer system in the future.    

_____ If allowed to connect, I intend to expand or alter my business.      

_____ My business is limited because my private system is failing, undersized, or inadequate. 

_____ If allowed to connect, I intend to make significant improvements to my property. 

_____ If not allowed to connect, I intend to close my business or offer my property for sale. 

 

 

49

Item 7.



Code of Virginia 
Title 15.2. Counties, Cities and Towns 
Subtitle II. Powers of Local Government 
Chapter 9. General Powers of Local Governments 
Article 5. Additional Powers
   
§ 15.2-983. Creation of registry for short-term rental of property
  
A. As used in this section:
  
"Operator" means the proprietor of any dwelling, lodging, or sleeping accommodations offered as
a short-term rental, whether in the capacity of owner, lessee, sublessee, mortgagee in possession,
licensee, or any other possessory capacity.
  
"Short-term rental" means the provision of a room or space that is suitable or intended for
occupancy for dwelling, sleeping, or lodging purposes, for a period of fewer than 30 consecutive
days, in exchange for a charge for the occupancy.
  
B. 1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, general or special, any locality may, by
ordinance, establish a short-term rental registry and require operators within the locality to
register annually. The registration shall be ministerial in nature and shall require the operator to
provide (i) the complete name of the operator, (ii) the address of each property in the locality
offered for short-term rental by the operator, and (iii) an attestation that the property owner has
granted permission for use of such property as a short-term rental if the operator is a lessee or
sublessee. A locality may charge a reasonable fee for such registration related to the actual costs
of establishing and maintaining the registry.
  
2. No ordinance shall require a person to register pursuant to this section if such person is (i)
licensed by the Real Estate Board or is a property owner who is represented by a real estate
licensee; (ii) registered pursuant to the Virginia Real Estate Time-Share Act (§ 55.1-2200 et seq.);
(iii) licensed or registered with the Department of Health, related to the provision of room or
space for lodging; or (iv) licensed or registered with the locality, related to the rental or
management of real property, including licensed real estate professionals, hotels, motels,
campgrounds, and bed and breakfast establishments.
  
C. 1. If a locality adopts a registry ordinance pursuant to this section, such ordinance may include
a penalty not to exceed $500 per violation for an operator required to register who offers for
short-term rental a property that is not registered with the locality. Such ordinance may provide
that unless and until an operator pays the penalty and registers such property, the operator may
not continue to offer such property for short-term rental. Upon repeated violations of a registry
ordinance as it relates to a specific property, an operator may be prohibited from registering and
offering that property for short-term rental.
  
2. Such ordinance may further provide that an operator required to register may be prohibited
from offering a specific property for short-term rental in the locality upon multiple violations on
more than three occasions of applicable state and local laws, ordinances, and regulations, as they
relate to the short-term rental.
  
D. No local ordinance shall prohibit an operator from offering a property as a short-term rental
solely on the basis that such operator is a lessee or sublessee, provided that the property owner

1 2/11/2025 12:00:00 AM
50

Item 8.

/vacode/55.1-2200/


has granted permission for such property's use as a short-term rental. Localities may enact an
ordinance that limits a lessee or sublessee to one short-term rental within the applicable locality.
No local ordinance enacted after December 31, 2023, or any subsequent amendment, shall
require that a special exception, special use, or conditional use permit be obtained for the use of
a residential dwelling as a short-term rental where the dwelling unit is also legally occupied by
the property owner as his primary residence.
  
E. Except as provided in this section, nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit, limit, or
otherwise supersede existing local authority to regulate the short-term rental of property
through general land use and zoning authority. Nothing in this section shall be construed to
supersede or limit contracts or agreements between or among individuals or private entities
related to the use of real property, including recorded declarations and covenants, the provisions
of condominium instruments of a condominium created pursuant to the Virginia Condominium
Act (§ 55.1-1900 et seq.), the declaration of a common interest community as defined in § 54.1-
2345, the cooperative instruments of a cooperative created pursuant to the Virginia Real Estate
Cooperative Act (§ 55.1-2100 et seq.), or any declaration of a property owners' association
created pursuant to the Property Owners' Association Act (§ 55.1-1800 et seq.).
  
2017, c. 741;2024, cc. 700, 792.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.
  

2 2/11/2025 12:00:00 AM
51

Item 8.

/vacode/55.1-1900/
/vacode/54.1-2345/
/vacode/54.1-2345/
/vacode/55.1-2100/
/vacode/55.1-1800/
http://LegacyLIS.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0741
http://LegacyLIS.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?171+ful+CHAP0741
http://LegacyLIS.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?241+ful+CHAP0700
http://LegacyLIS.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?241+ful+CHAP0792

	Top
	Item 1.	November 12 minutes
	PC Minutes.11.12.24

	Item 2.	Attorney Opinions
	Council Memo

	Item 3.	Sign Ordinance Enforcement Memo
	Sign Ordinance Enforcement Memo_0

	Item 4.	Artwork Article American Bar Association
	Understanding the First Amendment Limit..

	Item 5.	Morris v. City of New Orleans
	Morris v. City of New Orleans

	Item 6.	Letter of Interest
	TOC Collection System Letter of Interest

	Item 7.	Letter of Interest Response
	Letter of Interest Response

	Item 8.	Short Term Rental Registry
	15.2-983 Short Term Rental Registry

	Bottom

